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Dear  
 
Official Information Act Request for – OIA Services 
I write in response to your Official Information Act request received by us 29th March 2021, you 
requested the following information: 
 

1. Does your organisation have a policy or guidelines in relation to charging requestors 
for supplying information under the Official Information Act 1982? 

2. If yes, please supply a written copy of the policy/guideline, including grounds for 
seeking costs for supplying information, charges for photocopying, scanning or other 
copying of information and the hourly rate for staff time in compiling requests? 

3. If not, what does your organisation charge for photocopying, scanning or other 
copying of information and what is the hourly rate for staff time in compiling 
requests? 

In the 12 months from 01 January 2020 to December 31, 2020: 
4. How many requests for information under the Official Information Act did your 

organisation receive? 
5. Of these, in how many was the requestor advised that they would incur charges for 

copying and staff time, or any other reason? 
6. In how many of these, did the requestor pay the required charge for supplying of 

information? 
7. In total, how much did your organisation receive in payments for supplying 

information under the OIA? 
8. What were the largest 10 amounts paid by requestors in charges for fulfilling OIA 

requests? 
 
Counties Manukau Health Response: 
For context Counties Manukau Health (CM Health) employs over 8,500 staff and provides health and 
support services to people living in the Counties Manukau region (approx. 601,490 people). We see over 
118,000 people in our Emergency Department each year, and over 2,000 visitors come through 
Middlemore Hospital daily. 
 

1. Does your organisation have a policy or guidelines in relation to charging requestors 
for supplying information under the Official Information Act 1982? 

2. If yes, please supply a written copy of the policy/guideline, including grounds for 
seeking costs for supplying information, charges for photocopying, scanning or other 
copying of information and the hourly rate for staff time in compiling requests? 



3. If not, what does your organisation charge for photocopying, scanning or other 
copying of information and what is the hourly rate for staff time in compiling 
requests? 
CM Health follows the Official Information Act 1982 where under section 15 an agency 
can charge for the supply of information.  Any charge fixed must be ‘reasonable’ and 
‘regard may be had to the cost of the labour and materials involved in making the 
information available’.  
 
At CM Health we also have a procedure for “Responding to Official Information Act 
Requests” which we have attached as Appendix 1. This procedure sets out the process 
that staff must follow when responding to Official Information Act requests and includes 
guidance around charging.  

 
In addition, the Ministry of Justice has published Charging Guidelines for Official 
Information Act 1982 Requests on their website which sets out details of the calculation 
of charges, together with circumstances where waiver of a charge may be appropriate. 
This document is publicly available at the below link:   

• https://www.justice.govt.nz/about/official-information-act-
requests/directory-of-official-information/charging-guidelines-for-oia-
requests/    

 
In the 12 months from 01 January 2020 to December 31, 2020: 
4. How many requests for information under the Official Information Act did your 

organisation receive? 
CM Health received 185 OIA requests over this timeframe. 
 

5. Of these, in how many was the requestor advised that they would incur charges for 
copying and staff time, or any other reason? 

6. In how many of these, did the requestor pay the required charge for supplying of 
information? 

7. In total, how much did your organisation receive in payments for supplying 
information under the OIA? 

8. What were the largest 10 amounts paid by requestors in charges for fulfilling OIA 
requests? 
Nil, CM Health did not advise any requester they would incur any charges in relation 
to their Official Information Act request.  

 
I trust this information answers your request. You are entitled to seek a review of the response by the 
Ombudsman under section 28(3) of the Official Information Act.  Information about how to make a 
complaint is available at www.ombudsman.parliament.nz or Freephone 0800 802 602. 
 
Please note that this response or an edited version of this may be published on the Counties Manukau 
Health website. If you consider there are good reasons why this response should not be made publicly 
available, we will be happy to consider this. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
Fepulea’i Margie Apa 
Chief Executive Officer 
Counties Manukau Health 
























